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GUIDELINES FOR THE REMISSION OF FORFEITURES AND MITIGATION OF
PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF 19 U.S.C. 1627A, FOR STOLEN CONVEYANCES

AND PARTS

I 19 U.S.C. 1627a(a)

The provisions of 19 U.S.C. 1627a(a), prohibit the importation, exportation or
attempted importation or exportation of any self-propelled vehicle, vessel, aircraft
or part thereof that has been stolen or has had any identification number
removed, obliterated, tampered with or altered.

A. Knowing violations; altered Vehicle Identification Numbers (VINSs)

1.

Under the provisions of title 19, United States Code, section 1627a(a),
whoever knowingly imports, exports or attempts to import or export:

a. any stolen self-propelled vehicle, vessel aircraft or part of a
self-propelled vehicle, vessel or aircraft, or

b. any self-propelled vehicle or part of a self-propelled vehicle
from which the identification number has been removed,
obliterated, tampered with, or altered

shall be subject to a civil penalty in an amount not to exceed
$10,000 for each violation. Each vehicle constitutes a separate
violation, e.q., if a party knowingly attempts to import 6 stolen
vehicles and parts of another stolen vehicle, he would be subject to
$70,000 in penalties under this statute.

2. Any violation noted above shall make the self-propelled vehicle,

vessel, aircraft or part thereof subject to seizure and forfeiture.

3. Both seizure and forfeiture and a monetary penalty may be assessed.

B. Forfeiture Remission Guidelines

1.

No relief from forfeiture shall be afforded any party who knowingly
imported, exported or attempted to import or export any stolen self-
propelled vehicle, vessel, aircraft or part or who has altered,
obliterated, tampered with or removed any VIN.

Relief may be afforded to any claimant to the property who
obtained an ownership interest in the property in good faith and
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was unaware of any theft of the property or of any alteration,
obliteration, removal or tampering with any VIN.

3. Any such party described in paragraph 2 found to have a good faith
interest in the property will be required to pay any costs of storage
and seizure and to execute a hold harmless agreement in
accordance with general forfeiture remission policy.

Penalty mitigation guidelines

No mitigation will be afforded from any penalty incurred by any party for
violation of the provisions of 19 U.S.C. 1627a(a).

19 U.S.C. 1627a(b)

The provisions of 19 U.S.C. 1627a(b) require any person attempting to export a
used self-propelled vehicle to present, pursuant to regulation, to the appropriate
Customs officer, both the vehicle and documentation describing such vehicle
which includes the vehicle identification number, before lading if the vehicle is to
be transported by vessel or aircraft or before export if the vehicle is to be
transported by rail, highway, or under its own power. Failure to comply with the
regulations shall subject such person to a penalty of not more than $500 for each
violation.

A.

The regulations governing the procedures for the exportation of used self-
propelled vehicles are found at 19 C.F.R. Part 192. By regulation, these
penalties have been set at $500.

“Self-propelled vehicle” includes any automobile, truck, tractor, bus,
motorcycle, motor home, self-propelled agricultural machinery,
construction equipment, special use equipment and any other self-
propelled vehicle used or designed for running on land but not on rail.

1. Inasmuch as the documentation to be presented must include a
vehicle identification number, certain vehicles which are designed
for running on land which do not have vehicle identification
numbers (such as go-karts, golf carts, etc.) would not be included
under the Part 192 export requirements.

2. If penalties are assessed against parties for failing to meet
requirements of Part 192 regarding vehicles not falling under the
jurisdiction of that Part, they shall be mitigated without payment.

“‘Used” refers to any self-propelled vehicle the equitable or legal title to

which has been transferred by a manufacturer, distributor or dealer to an
ultimate purchaser.
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“‘Ultimate purchaser” means the first person, other than a dealer, who in
good faith purchases a self-propelled vehicle for purposes other than
resale.

The provisions of 19 U.S.C. 1646¢ require all persons exporting used
automobiles, including automobiles for personal use, by air or ship to
provide to Customs at least 72 hours before export the vehicle
identification number and proof of ownership of such automobile. 19
U.S.C. 1646¢c does not contain a penalty provision therein, but its
requirements are also included in 19 C.F.R. Part 192. While there is no
such statutory requirement for vehicles exported by rail, highway or under
their own power, the Part 192 regulations impose such a requirement.

1. For exportation by air or ship, both the vehicle and the required
documentation must be presented to Customs at least 72 hours
prior to departure. See, 19 C.F.R. 192.2(c)(1).

2. For vehicles exported by rail, highway or under their own power,
the required documentation must be presented to Customs at least
72 hours prior to export, but the vehicle only must be presented to
Customs at the time of exportation. See, 19 C.F.R. 192.2(c)(2).

3. In the land border environment, if the documentation is presented
to Customs less than 72 hours prior to exportation, a monetary
penalty, subject to any appropriate mitigation in accordance with
these guidelines, may be assessed. If Customs completes its
examination and certifies that the documentation presented is
authentic in less than 72 hours, the party exporting the vehicles
may complete exportation. Customs need not require the vehicle to
remain in the United States waiting for 72 hours if all appropriate
checks have been completed.

If a penalty is assessed and the violator is a non-resident or there is other
reason to believe that the penalty might not be collected, the vehicle may
be detained under the provisions of 19 U.S.C. 1594 to guarantee payment
of any penalty. Detention is not mandatory.

The penalty may be assessed against an exporter attempting to export a
vehicle or an exporter who has exported a vehicle without complying with
the regulations governing vehicle exportation. See, 19 C.F.R. 192.3.

The $500 penalty under this section of law shall be assessed per each

vehicle, not each violation of the regulations governing the exportation of
that vehicle. If a person violates two or more regulatory provisions in Part
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192 regarding the exportation of a particular vehicle, the penalty would be
$500 for the vehicle, not $500 for each regulatory breach.

Mitigation Guidelines

1.

Personal exportation; includes any vehicle exported by a person
and which is intended for his or her own individual or family use.

a.

For failure to present appropriate documentation in a manner
prescribed by regulation the penalty may be mitigated upon
payment of an amount between $50 and $250 depending on
the facts and circumstances surrounding the violation.

Authority to mitigate these penalties on-site may be
delegated by the Fines, Penalties and Forfeitures Officer
with the concurrence of the Port Director.

Commercial exportations; includes any vehicles or vehicles
exported by a person or persons and which are intended for resale,
commercial use or personal use by parties other than the exporting
persons.

a.

For failure to present appropriate documentation in a
manner prescribed by regulation the penalty may be
mitigated to an amount no less than $250 depending on the
facts and circumstances surrounding the violation.

Authority to mitigate these penalties on-site may be

delegated by the Fines, Penalties and Forfeitures Officer
with the concurrence of the Port Director.

67



	INTRODUCTIONS CONTRARY TO LAW - 19 U.S.C. 1595A(C)
	I.In General
	II.Guidelines for remission of seized property
	A.  Scope
	B.  Dispositions
	C.  Special Circumstances
	D.  Definitions of Factors Utilized Under Normal Dispositions


	CONVEYANCES (VESSELS, VEHICLES AND AIRCRAFTS)
	19 U.S.C. 1595a(a); 21 U.S.C. 881; 49 U.S.C. 80302/80303; 19 U.S.C. 1703; 19 U.S.C. 1590; 19 U.S.C. 1594
	I.Statutory Authority for Seizure and Forfeiture
	II.Common Carriers
	III. Immediate Administrative Forfeiture Proceedings
	IV.General Considerations When Reviewing Petitions for Relief
	Forfeiture Remission Guidelines - 19 U.S.C. 1595a(a), 21 U.S.C. 881, and 49 U.S.C. 80303
	VI. Mitigation Guidelines - 19 U.S.C. 1703, 19 U.S.C. 1590
	VII.Mitigation Guidelines - Petitioning for Proceeds of Sale Following Immediate Forfeiture
	Restoration of Proceeds of Sale (19 U.S.C. 1613; 19 C.F.R. Part 171, Subpart E)

	IMITATION FIREARM IMPORTS – 15 U.S.C. 5001\(A\�
	I.Background
	II.Seizure
	III.Forfeiture Remission Guidelines
	IV.Claims for Liquidated Damages
	V.Referral of Petitions for Relief
	VI.Disposition of Forfeited Merchandise

	DOG AND CAT FUR PRODUCTS - 19 U.S.C. 1308
	I.In General
	Forfeiture Remission
	III.Disposition of Forfeited Merchandise

	AIRCRAFT REGISTRATION AND CERTIFICATION - 49 U.S.C. 46306
	I.Violations/Remission Guidelines
	II.Presentation of Valid Documentation
	III.Seizures Resulting From Multiple Violations of the Statute
	IV.Aggravating and Mitigating Factors
	V.Advice of FAA

	PASSENGER FAILURE TO DECLARE - 19 U.S.C. 1497
	In General
	Declaration Requirements
	Amendment of Declarations Permitted - 19 C.F.R. 148.16
	Elements of the Violation
	Violator’s Liability - 19 U.S.C. 1497
	Minor Violations
	Serious Violations
	Guidelines for Disposition of Violations of 19 U.S.C. 1497

	CURRENCY OR MONETARY INSTRUMENT REPORT – 31 U.S.C
	Background
	Pre-seizure and Seizure Procedures
	Remission Upon Payment of Monetary Penalty
	Mitigating Factors
	No Private Rights Created
	Statute Of Limitations For Civil Forfeiture Actions
	Overview
	Statutory Authorization for Seizure and Underlying Violation Citations
	Early Release Procedures
	Remission/Mitigation Considerations
	Remission/Mitigation Guidelines
	Claims for Liquidated Damages
	Penalties

	GUIDELINES FOR THE REMISSION OF FORFEITURES AND MITIGATION OF PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF 19 U.S.C. 1627A, FOR STOLEN CONVEYANCES AND PARTS
	19 U.S.C. 1627a(a)

	MITIGATION OF TRADEMARK, COPYRIGHT AND PATENT VIOLATIONS
	Introduction
	Trademark Violations - Seizures
	A.Counterfeit – 19 U.S.C. 1526\(e\); 19 U.S.C.�
	B.Confusingly Similar – 19 U.S.C. 1595a\(c\)\�
	C.Gray Market – 19 U.S.C. 1526\(b\)

	Trademark Violation – Civil Monetary Fine; 19 U.S
	Copyright Violations
	Patent Infringement
	IPR Matrices
	Recommended Actions, Citations, and Dispositions of Importations
	Involving Trademark Violations
	Recommended Actions, Citations, and Dispositions of Importations
	Involving Copyright Violations
	Recommended Actions, Citations, and Dispositions of Exportations
	Involving Trademark & Copyright Violations
	Status



	COMMERCIAL FRAUD – 19 U.S.C. 1592
	NEGLIGENCE, GROSS NEGLIGENCE AND FRAUD
	Introduction
	Violations of Section 592
	Definition of Materiality Under Section 592
	Degrees of Culpability Under Section 592
	A. Negligence
	B. Gross Negligence
	C. Fraud

	Discussion of Additional Terms
	1.  Duty Loss Violations
	2.  Non-duty Loss Violations
	3.  Actual Loss of Duties
	4.  Potential Loss of Duties
	5.  Total Loss of Duty
	6.  Reasonable Care
	7.  Clerical Error
	8.  Mistake of Fact

	Penalty Assessment
	Administrative Penalty Disposition
	Mitigating Factors
	Aggravating Factors
	Section 592(d) Demands
	Customs Brokers
	Arriving Travelers
	Violations of Laws Administered by Other Federal Agencies.
	Section 592 Violations by Small Entities

	CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES - FAILURE TO MANIFEST - 19 U.S.C. 1584
	FAILURE TO MANIFEST ILLEGAL DRUGS - STATUTORY LIABILITY UNDER 19 U.S.C. 1584(a)(2)
	FP&F OFFICER’S AUTHORITY
	PETITIONS FOR RELIEF
	SPECIAL PROCEDURES FOR CARRIERS PARTICIPATING IN CUSTOMS INDUSTRY PARTNERSHIP PROGRAMS (IPP)
	PENALTY MITIGATION
	PENALTY OFFSETS

	BROKER PENALTIES - 19 U.S.C. 1641
	APPENDIX C TO PART 171, CUSTOMS REGULATIONS
	Overview
	Customs Guidelines for the Imposition and Mitigation of Penalties for Violations of 19 U.S.C. 1641
	Penalty Assessment Procedures – 19 C.F.R. Part 11
	Penalty Assessment – Conducting Customs Business 
	SECTION 1641\(d\)\(1\)\(A\)—MAKING A FALSE
	SECTION 1641\(d\)\(1\)\(B\)—BROKER CONVICT
	SECTION 1641\(d\)\(1\)\(C\)—VIOLATION OF A
	SECTION 1641\(d\)\(1\)\(D\)—COUNSELING, CO
	SECTION 1641\(d\)\(1\)\(E\)—KNOWINGLY EMPL
	SECTION 1641\(d\)\(1\)\(F\)—IN THE COURSE 
	SECTION 1641\(b\)\(5\)—THE FAILURE OF A CUST�
	SECTION 1641\(c\)\(3\)—FAILURE OF A CUSTOMS �
	SECTION 1641\(b\)\(4\)—FAILURE OF A LICENSED�
	LIMITS OF PENALTY ASSESSMENTS
	CONSOLIDATION OF CASES

	DRAWBACK PENALTIES - 19 U.S.C. 1593A
	APPENDIX D TO PART 171, CUSTOMS REGULATIONS (T.D. 00-5)
	Overview
	Guidelines For The Imposition And Mitigation Of Penalties For Violations Of 19 U.S.C. 1593a
	I.Violations Of Section 593a
	II.Degrees Of Culpability
	III.Assessment Of Penalties
	IV.Maximum Penalties
	V.Deprivation Of Lawful Revenue
	VI.Final Disposition Of Penalty Cases When The Drawback Claimant Is Not A Certified Participant In The Drawback Compliance Program
	VII.Drawback Compliance Program Participants
	VIII.Violations By Small Entities


	RECORDKEEPING PENALTIES - 19 U.S.C. 1509 (T.D. 00-63)
	Overview
	GUIDELINES FOR THE MITIGATION OF PENALTIES FOR 19 U.S.C. 1509
	I.Degrees Of Culpability
	II.Procedure For Penalty Assessment
	III.Administrative Penalty Disposition
	IV.Mitigating Factors
	V.Aggravating Factors


	VESSEL REPAIR PENALTIES (19 U.S.C. 1466)
	In General
	Statutory/Regulatory Requirements
	Elements of Violation/Determination of Liability
	Penalty Assessment Procedures
	Mitigation Guidelines

	VESSELS AND OTHER CONVEYANCES IN FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC TRADE; CARGO DELIVERY; MANIFESTING
	ARRIVAL AND ENTRY OF VESSELS, VEHICLES AND AIRCRAFT
	Arrival Reporting Requirements
	Making Entry
	Seizures/Penalties
	Penalty Assessment
	Recreational Vessel Reporting
	Seizures
	Mitigation/Remission Guidelines

	PASSENGER/CREWMEMBER VIOLATIONS
	Specific Violations
	Mitigation Guidelines

	MANIFEST AND CARGO DELIVERY VIOLATIONS
	Presentation of Manifests
	Inaccuracies or Discrepancies in Manifests
	Delivery of Cargo Without Customs Authorization (19 U.S.C. 1595a(b) for Violation of 19 U.S.C. 1448 and/or 19 U.S.C. 1499)
	Other Vessel Penalties
	Departure of Vessels; Transportation in Coastwise Trade
	International Carrier Bond

	LIQUIDATED
	DAMAGES
	In General
	Statute of Limitations for Bond Violations-See, 28 U.S.C. 2415
	FP&F Officer’s Mitigation Authority
	Assessment of Claims
	Offers in Compromise
	Petitions for Relief
	Protests
	Providing Copies of Bonds and Entries
	Defenses
	Effect Of Liquidation
	Bankruptcy of Principal

	GUIDELINES FOR CANCELLATION OF LIQUIDATED DAMAGES CLAIMS REF: T.D. 94-38, T.D. 98-53, T.D. 99-29, T.D. 01-41 AND T.D. 02-20
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims for Liquidated Damages for Failure to File Entry Summaries Timely (19 C.F.R. 142.15 and 113.62(b)), Failure to Pay Estimated Duties Timely (19 C.F.R. 113.62(a)(1)(i) and 113.62(l)(4)), and Failure to 
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims for Liquidated Damages for Violation of Temporary Importation Bonds (19 C.F.R. 10.39) (T.D. 94-38)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims Involving Carnets (T.D. 02-20)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims Involving Failure to Redeliver Merchandise into Customs Custody or Failure to Comply With a Notice of Refusal of Admission Issued by Another Government Agency (19 C.F.R. 141.113, 113.62(d) or 113.62(e)) (T.D. 
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims Arising From Failure to Provide Missing Documents (19 C.F.R. 113.42) (T.D. 94-38)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims Arising Fro
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims for Shortage, Irregular Delivery, Non-Delivery or Delivery Directly to the Consignee of In-bond Merchandise (19 C.F.R. 18.8) (T.D. 99-29)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims Arising Fro
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims Arising From Violation of Airport Security Regulations (19 C.F.R. 122.181 ET.SEQ.) (T.D. 94-38)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims Arising From the Failure to Hold Merchandise at the Place of Examination (19 C.F.R. 113.62(f)) (T.D. 99-29)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims Arising From the Failure of a Centralized Examination Station (CES) Operator to Deliver Merchandise to or Retain Merchandise at the CES (19 C.F.R. 151.15, 19 C.F.R. 113.63) (T.D. 99-29)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims Arising from the Removal of Merchandise Without Authorization From a Container Freight Station (CFS) (19 C.F.R. 19.40 ET.SEQ.) (19 C.F.R. 113.63(b)) (T.D. 99-29)
	Claims for Liquidated Damages Assessed Against a Bonded Party for Failure to Notify Customs of the Presence of Unentered Merchandise (T.D. 99-29)
	Claims for Liquidated Damages Incurred by the Carrier or Other Party for Failure to Notify the Bonded Warehouse of the Presence of Unentered Merchandise (T.D. 99-29)
	Claims for Liquidated Damages Against a Bonded Warehouse for Failure to Collect Unentered Merchandise For Which Notification Has Been Received (T.D. 99-29)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims Arising From Violation of Foreign Trade Zone Regulations (19 C.F.R. Part 146, 19 C.F.R. 113.73) (T.D. 01-41)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims for Late Filing or Failure to File Softwood Lumber Information (19 C.F.R. 12.140, 19 C.F.R. 113.62(k), 19 C.F.R. 113.62(l)(5)) (T.D. 98-53)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims for Failure to File Reconciliations Timely (REF: 64 FR 73121, dated December 29, 1999; 66 FR 14619, dated March 13, 2001)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims for Failure to Redeliver Export Merchandise (19 C.F.R. 113.64(f)(1) and (f)(2)) (T.D. 02-20)
	Guidelines for Assessment and Cancellation of Claims for Failure or Late Filing of NAFTA Duty Deferral Entries (T.D. 02-20)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims for Violations Arising From Failure to Comply With Trade Fair Regulations (T.D. 02-20)
	Guidelines for Cancellation of Claims When Petitions for Relief Are Filed Untimely (T.D. 02-20)

	NOTE:  FOR PURPOSES OF ALL BOND CANCELLATION STANDARDS, THE TERM VALUE SHALL MEAN VALUE AS DETERMINED UNDER 19 U.S.C. 1401A.
	ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
	The Internet
	Customs Regulations
	Customs Bulletin
	Importing Into the United States
	Informed Compliance Publications
	Value Publications
	“Your Comments are Important”


